
TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent. TN30 6AN 
 

Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01580 762271 

 

 

Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  
Facsimile: 01580 765647 

 

 

Tuesday, 8 September 2020 
MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Notice is given that a Virtual meeting of the Town Council will be held on 

MONDAY, 14TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 at 7.00 pm. 
Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81533238026  

 
All Councillors are summoned to attend for the purpose of considering and 
resolving upon the business to be transacted as set out hereunder. For this 

meeting robes will be worn. 

 
Phil Burgess, Town Clerk. 

Councillors Serving: 
M. Carter, V. Cole, J. Crawford, Mrs. J. Curteis (Mayor), Mrs. S.  Ferguson, Miss A. Gardner, M. Hickmott, 
C. Knowles, Dr.  L. Lovelidge, K. Mulholland, J. Nelson, R. Parkin, R. Quinton, Mrs. P. Smith, A. Sugden and 
Mrs. K. Walder 

AGENDA 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  

 
3.   MINUTES. 

To consider and, if approved, confirm and sign the minutes of the Town 
Council meeting held on 13th July 2020 and Special Town Council meeting 
held on 10th August 2020 as correct records. 

 
4.   MATTERS ARISING.  

 
5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS. 

Residents may speak as of right on any matter for no more than 3 minutes subject to stating their 
full name and address before speaking. 

 
6.   COMMITTEE REPORTS. 

To receive, and if approved, adopt the decisions, recommendations and 

reports of the committees as described hereunder; 
Subject to any specific questions or objections, the Minutes and Reports of the under-mentioned 
Committees will be taken as *read and, if duly seconded at this meeting, the delegated decisions 
within those minutes will be approved and adopted (subject to any inaccuracies in the minutes being 
identified later by those committees) as part of the proceedings of this section of the Town Council 
meeting. The following committee recommendations listed below shall now be voted on by a show of 
hands; *if circulated to Councillors no later than the day of service of the summons to attend the 
scheduled meeting. 

 

Internal Committee; 13th July 2020 and 13th July 2020 (Special), 
10th August 2020 and 10th August 2020 (Special). 

 

 
External Committee; 13th July 2020 and 13th July 2020 (Special), 

10th August 2020. 

 

 

Public Document Pack

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81533238026


 

Planning; 6th July 2020 and 3rd August 2020. 

 

 

7.   MAYORAL CHAPLAIN. 
To appoint Reverend Jeanette Kennett as chaplain to the Mayor.  
 

8.   PRESENTATION TO THE COUNCIL. 
A presentation by James Fuller on the independent survey and High St 

Regeneration. The full survey will be brought to the attention of the 
External Committee. 
 

9.   GENERAL POWER OF COMPETENCE. 
To reaffirm the Town Council’s qualification for the General Power of 

Competence. * 
 (Page 1) 
 

10.   TENTERDEN CINEMA. 
 

(a) The Cinema Project contains elements of both Internal and 
External Committees’ jurisdiction. To consider dealing with matters 

relating to the Cinema at Town Council rather than through 
individual committees.  

(b) To consider a response to points within the attached letter. * 

 (Page 2) 
 

11.   COMMUNITY WARDEN. 
No Report.  
 

12.   KENT POLICE. 
To note the August 2020 and September 2020 PCSO Monthly 

Newsletters.* 
 (Pages 3 - 23) 
 

13.   REPORTS FROM APPOINTED TRUSTEES AND FROM COUNCIL 
REPRESENTATIVES ON OTHER ORGANISATIONS. 

To note any written reports from outside organisations. *  
 (Pages 24 - 25) 
 

14.   MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS.  
 

 
End. 

 
Attachments and tabled documents can be obtained from the Town Clerk’s office or downloaded from www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. 



Town Council – 14th September 2020 
General Power of Competence 

 
 
Councils are bound by duties they must perform and discretionary powers which they are able to 
perform. 
 
In order to carry out tasks the council should normally use a specific power to enable them to do so. 
The general power of competence (GPC) allows the council to operate as an individual would and 
removes the need for TTC to find a specific power to perform tasks. It is a power of first resort and 
gives the council far greater flexibility. 
 
Activities that qualified councils can carry out include: 

 Investing in local businesses and deriving a share income provided the purpose is to support 

the local economy. 

 Running a shop (for instance with a tourist information centre) 

 Charging for services (previously this had to be non-profit) 

 
Occasionally the council needs to re-affirm its qualification for the GPC. This being: 

 It has a Clerk qualified under the listed sections of the 2012 order (in our case the CILCA 

qualification for both clerk and deputy). 

 At least two thirds of vacancies must have been filled by elected members (rather than co-

opted). 

 

 
Proposal: To reaffirm the council’s qualification for the General Power of Competence 
  
 
 
 
Phil Burgess  
Town Clerk 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 9



 

 Page 1 of 1 

Tenterden Cinema Response to Tenterden 
Town Council following closed Council meeting 
of 10 August 
 

1 We support the Council’s decision to suspend discussions with the cinema sub-
committee for at least two months. There are too many uncertainties about the 
progression of the Covid pandemic and its impact on neighbourhood cinema 
operators for it to be possible to make plans or conduct meaningful 
negotiations at the moment. In the meantime, we wish to keep lines of 
communication open and clarify future options. 

2 We continue to believe that a neighbourhood cinema development would have 
a major impact on the town’s regeneration, post pandemic, but the present 
scheme is too expensive. We request that the Council should ask Burrell Foley 
Fischer to look at ways of reducing the cost of the scheme by £500K-£750K. At 
the same time, we would suggest they consider the feasibility of alternative use 
for the top part of the Pebbles building, which is under-utilised in the present 
scheme. Could there be another revenue-generating commercial use for at 
least part of the building? 

3 Any redevelopment of the Pebbles building depends on the availability of the 
lease. We would be grateful for clarification of the Council’s and White Stuff’s 
intentions. 

4 We plan to hold a Zoom meeting with the potential operators to explain the 
current state of the project, get an indication of their views on the industry 
future, get their feedback on the BFF scheme, and any indication on their ability 
to invest in a Tenterden cinema fit-out. 

5 We request an opportunity to discuss the cinema proposal with the Town 
Centre Regeneration lead, Keli Nolan-Lyons.   

 

Finally, we would like to restate our view that this must be a real community project: 
the Focus Group was established by the Council to give advice, and the Cinema 
Company was formed by Focus Group members to give effect to the jointly agreed 
decisions of the Focus Group and Council. We all share the aim of regenerating the 
town, the High Street and the local economy, and providing better facilities for the 
residents of and visitors to Tenterden. 

 

Tom Evans, Chairman, 31 August 2020. 

Page 2

Agenda Item 10



Police Community Support Officer Newsletter 
August 2020 

 
Hello, 
 
 I am your local Police Community Support Officer for your area. For those of you that don’t know 

me, my name is PCSO Katherine Richards, but most people call me Kate.  
 
This is my report for this month, so you are all aware of what I have been 
up to in and around your areas and what crimes have been happening. My 
report goes out to the Parish Councils, Neighbourhood Watch co-
ordinators, and any other members of the community who may be 
interested in receiving it. This can also be shared on your parish websites 
and your social media sites. Please share. 
 
I would just like to let you know that I will be your point of contact for your 
town and parishes. I would like to take this opportunity to introduce you to 
PCSO Kyle Farnfield, who some of you are aware I have been tutoring the 
past few weeks. Kyle is going to be taking over from me with some of the 

parishes, so that we can give you and your communities greater support. 
 
  
 
I will be continuing to look after Tenterden, St. Michaels, Rolvenden , Newenden , Weald 
South  and Isle of Oxney areas.  Kyle will be the point of contact and taking over Biddenden, Weald 
Central, Weald North, Charing. 
 
 
I have very much enjoy working with all the communities, which have welcomed me in their areas, 
and know that Kyle will continue to work with you to make your areas safe.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This month has continued to be as busy as ever for us, especially with 
the ongoing CORONAVIRUS – Due to new guidelines being announced 
by the government regularly with regards to COVID-19, please refer to 
their website for the most update to date information at: 
 
 https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus. 
 
Face coverings will be mandatory in shops and supermarkets in England 
from 24 July. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus


Info: http://gov.uk/government/publications/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-
your-own/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-your-own 
 

 
 
 
 
 
It has been fantastic to see local communities coming together to make face coverings for people to 
pick up.  
 
 

Page 4

http://gov.uk/government/publications/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-your-own/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-your-own
http://gov.uk/government/publications/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-your-own/face-coverings-when-to-wear-one-and-how-to-make-your-own


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 5



 
 
 
As measures start to be lifted, please still maintain the safety guidelines that shops, restaurants etc... 
have in place to make it safe for their staff , customers and the community. 
 
 

Other information. 
 
The coronavirus lockdown has seen an increase in the number of dogs being purchased, 
unfortunately this has also seen the demand rise to unprecedented levels along with thefts of dogs.  
 
Locations in rural areas are at risk and dog owners are encouraged to reassess their security 
measures, CCTV, ensure they do not leave their dogs out unattended, and ensure they are 
microchipped and registered correctly should the worst happen.  
 
They may also want to look at registering their dogs with” Dog lost” and remain vigilant by reporting 

suspicious vehicles, people and activity where concerned. 

This is now not just an Ashford or Kent issue but a national issue. 
 
Please take care with your pets. 
Kennels and Boarding/Breeding Kennels please be alert and vigilant. 
Above all if you are looking to purchase a dog please proceed with caution and use proper channels 
and do not purchase dogs from the back of a van parked in a motorway services etc. 
 
If you are an owner of a Boarding Kennel or a breeder and need some more crime prevention advice 
please get in touch, and I will try and help. 
Contact me: Katherine.richards@kent.police.uk  
 

Page 6

mailto:Katherine.richards@kent.police.uk


 
 
 

Appeal following theft of dogs from the Ashford area 
 

Officers are appealing for information after two dogs were stolen during a burglary in the 

Ashford area. 

Kent Police was called after the two bulldogs, named Pebbles and Queenie, were stolen 

from kennels behind a house in Little Chart. 

The theft is believed to have taken place between 2.30am and 3am on Saturday 23 May 

2020. 

Can you help? 
Officers are investigating and have released an image of the two dogs as they attempt to 

recover them for their owner. 

Anyone who has seen the dogs or who has any information is asked to contact Kent Police 

on 01843 222289, quoting reference 46/89694/20. 

Page 7



You can also contact the independent charity Crimestoppers anonymously by calling 0800 

555 111 or using the anonymous online form at Crimestoppers-uk.org 
 
 

Found 
 
Stolen dog recovered on a busy dual carriageway near 
Maidstone. 
 

 
 

A stolen dog found wandering next to a busy dual carriageway near Maidstone has been 

returned to its rightful owner. 

Peanut, a seven-month-old cavapoo, was recovered by a motorist at around 7am on 

Wednesday 10 June 2020, after he was spotted on the central reservation of the A249, 

Detling Hill. 

He was passed into the hands of attending officers and checks later uncovered a microchip 

which led to him being reunited with his owner. 

 

Other dogs still missing 

Peanut had been reported stolen, along with eight other dogs, from kennels near Sandwich 

between 6 June and 7 June. 

Five of the other dogs had also previously been recovered after they were located left in 

locations close to the crime scene and at an area in Swale. 

An investigation into the theft is ongoing and three dogs remain outstanding - a female pug, 

a male poodle and a female cocker spaniel. 

Page 8

http://crimestoppers-uk.org/


 

Can you help? 

Anyone with information which may assist enquiries is asked to contact Kent Police on 

01843 222289, quoting reference 46/95763/20. 

You can also contact the independent charity Crimestoppers anonymously by calling 0800 

555111 or by using the anonymous online form at Crimestoppers-uk.org 

Kent Police has an established team dedicated to education and enforcement in relation to 

dogs. 

Part of the team’s role is to help promote initiatives such as microchipping and to work with 

the charity DogLost to reunite missing or stolen dogs with their 

owners. 

 

Latest fraud scams  
 
Fraudsters Impersonating Kent Police  
 
I know this is also happening in our rural / town areas aware. 
 

Please be alert and don’t give any Personal details. 
 
Report anything like this to Action fraud as well. 
 
 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fraud detectives are warning residents to beware of criminals who are using police phone 
numbers to target vulnerable people.  
 
Those responsible are not actually calling from a Kent Police station but are changing their caller 
ID to make it appear like they are – a process known as ‘spoofing’.  
Since the beginning of July, the force has received at least three reports of this nature from 
people living in Faversham, Gravesend and Gillingham.  
On each occasion the victim was contacted by someone claiming to be from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs, who told them they were wanted for tax evasion and would shortly be 
contacted by a police officer. They were then asked what their local police station was, giving 
the fraudster the opportunity to research the phone number for that station and arranging for 
an accomplice to pretend to call back on it. Two of those targeted were so worried about being 
arrested that they agreed to pay the bogus police officer around £900 each to settle the amount 
they were told they owed.  
Detective Sergeant Alec Wood of the Kent and Essex Serious Crime Directorate said: ‘Criminals 
are always looking for new ways in which to win the trust of those they target and calling from a 
number that appears to be a police number is the latest trick up their sleeve. ‘It is important to 
remember that a police officer will never ask you to pay money over the phone, nor will l they 
threaten you with arrest for not paying. Never give out your personal information in response to 
an incoming call or rely upon the caller ID as the sole means of identification – particularly if the 
caller is asking you to do something that will affect you financially.’  
If somebody rings you asking for this information, do not give it to them. Instead, hang up the 
phone and call a trusted number from a different phone or wait at least five minutes to ensure 
the line has cleared and you are not still talking to the same fraudster or an accomplice. Contact 
your bank immediately if you think you may have been scammed and also report the incident to 
Action Fraud. 

Page 12



 
 

Four arrested for suspected courier fraud offences 
 
Detectives investigating fraud offences reported to have been committed against vulnerable people 
across Kent have made four arrests. 
 
A 35-year-old man from Canterbury, a 33-year-old man from Loughton in Essex, a 26-year-old man 
from Maidstone and a 24-year-old man from Ashford were detained at around 3.30pm on 
Wednesday 15 July 2020 and remain in custody. 
 
They were arrested together at the M20 Maidstone services in a van believed linked to offences 
currently being investigated by officers from the Kent and Essex Serious Crime Directorate. 
 
Victims have reported being targeted by rogue tradesmen carrying out substandard work on their 
properties, before then receiving follow-up calls from fraudsters pretending to be police officers. 
 
The bogus officers claim to have arrested those responsible for the work before then asking to 
collect the victims’ bank cards so they can be used as evidence. 
 
Detective Sergeant Marc Cananur of the Kent and Essex Serious Crime Directorate said: ‘A police 
officer will never ask you to withdraw money or hand over your bank cards. Anyone who does 
receive a suspicious telephone call of this nature should hang up, wait five minutes to ensure the 
line is clear, and then call 101 to check the credentials of the person who called. 
 
‘It is not unusual for fraudsters to target the same property twice, for example by carrying out 
substandard or unnecessary repairs for a high fee and then posing as a police officer who is 
investigating the very crime they themselves have committed. 
 
‘Contact your bank immediately if you think you may have been scammed and also report the 
incident to Action Fraud. 
 
‘Remember the ABC rule to help protect yourself and others against fraud – never Assume someone 
is telling the truth, never Believe what they say unless you are confident they are who they say they 
are, and always Confirm the details they have provided.’ 
 
 

Appel: 
 

Teenage girl dies after collision in Egerton, near Ashford 
 
Kent Police is appealing for witnesses after a teenage girl died and three other people were seriously 
injured in a collision near Ashford. 
 
The incident happened on Mundy Bois Road, Egerton, at around 8.20pm on Saturday 4 July 2020. 
 
A silver Suzuki Swift with six people inside was travelling in the direction of Egerton when it left the 
road near Kingsland Lane and collided with a tree in a residential garden. 
 

Page 13



A 17-year-old girl from the Ashford area, who was a passenger in the vehicle, died on the way to 
hospital and three others, a 19-year-old man, an 18-year-old man and another 17-year-old girl, were 
all taken to a London hospital where they remain in a serious but stable condition. 
 
Officers arrested a 19-year-old man from Ashford and a 17-year-old girl from Maidstone, both of 
whom had previously been discharged from hospital, on suspicion of driving offences. Both remain 
in custody while enquiries into the incident continue. 
 
Kent Police has made a mandatory referral to the Independent Office for Police Conduct due to a 
police vehicle being in close proximity at the time of the collision. 
 
Officers from the Serious Collision Investigation Unit are carrying out enquiries into the incident and 
would particularly like to hear from anyone who saw the Suzuki Swift prior to the collision and may 
be able to help trace its movements and describe the manner it was being driven in. 
 
Please call the appeal line on 01622 798538 quoting reference DB/LB/60/20 or email 
sciu.td@kent.pnn.police.uk 
 
 

 
 
Police dogs help detain burglary suspect in 
Ashford 
 

Kent Police dogs helped with the search of a man after patrols were called to a rural 

burglary in Ashford. 

On Wednesday 15 July 2020 officers attended a property in Hamstreet Road after the 

homeowner confronted two suspected burglars who were on his land reportedly looking 

through his windows and trying door handles. 

  

The victim called police at around 9.30pm after confronting the men, which caused them to 

run from his property.  

  

Patrols carried out a search of the area with the assistance of police dogs and located a 52-

year-old man from Ashford in woodland near to the property. He matched the description 

of one of the suspects and was arrested on suspicion of burglary.  

  

Enquiries remain ongoing to locate the second man and officers urge anyone who witnessed 

anything suspicious in the area to call Kent Police on 01843 222289 quoting reference 

46/121539/20. 

  

Page 14

mailto:sciu.td@kent.pnn.police.uk
https://www.kent.police.uk/news/news-search/?ct=Policing+news
https://www.kent.police.uk/news/news-search/?ct=Policing+news


You can also contact the independent charity Crimestoppers anonymously by calling 0800 

555 111 or using the anonymous online form at Crimestoppers-uk.org 

 
 
 

REPORTING CRIMES: 
 
Please can I remind the community to report crimes or information by the correct channels i.e. via 
101, www.kent.police.uk - report a crime or tap the live chat button on this website. Or 999 if an 
emergency is happening here and now. Crimes are not to be reported to me via e-mail please as not 
always on duty. 
 
Sadly, we do not monitor community Facebook, Twitter, neighbour next door apps etc...and these 
are not the correct way to report things going on, otherwise we are unaware and unable to help you 
in your community.  
 
 
 

 
Kate Richards PCSO 46059656 
Community Safety Unit| Ashford Police Station | East Division 
  
Please do not use this email to report incidents. For a non-emergency please report online or 
contact 101 and in case of an emergency call 999. 
 
This email and any other accompanying document(s) contain information from Kent Police and/or 
Essex Police, which is confidential or privileged. The information is intended to be for the exclusive 
use of the individual(s) or bodies to whom it is addressed. The content, including any subsequent 
replies, could be disclosable if relating to a criminal investigation or civil proceedings. If you are not 
the intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of the 
contents of this information is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify us 
immediately by contacting the sender or telephoning Kent Police on 01622 690690 or Essex Police 
on 01245 491491, as appropriate. For further information regarding Kent Police’s or Essex Police’s 
use of personal data please go to https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/privacy/ or 
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/privacy/. Additionally for our Terms and Conditions please go to 
https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/ or https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/terms-
conditions/  
 

Page 15

http://www.kent.police.uk/
https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/privacy/
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/privacy/
https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/


Police Community Support Officer Newsletter 
September 2020 

 
 
Hello, 
 
 

 
 I am your local Police Community Support Officer for your area. For those 
of you that don’t know me, my name is PCSO Katherine Richards, but most 
people call me Kate. 
 
This is my report for this month, which I put out at the beginning of the 
month, so you are all be aware of what I have been up to in and around 
your areas and what crimes have been happening. My report goes out to 
the Parish Councils, Neighbourhood Watch co-ordinators, and any other 
members of the community who may be interested in receiving it. This can 
also be shared on your parish websites and your social media sites. Please 
share. 

I would just like to let you know that I will be your point of contact for your town and parishes.  
 
The areas that I cover are Tenterden, St. Michaels, Rolvenden , Newenden , Weald South  and Isle 
of Oxney areas.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
It’s been another busy month with a variety of different calls, from locating owner of this water 
bourse with the use of the Rural Farm Watch group and Rural Tasking team. Local farmer found it 
dumped on his land and after us carrying out checks, we have recovered it and owner has had it 
returned as had been previously reported as stolen. 
 
 

Page 16



 
   
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We have had various break in’s in the past month in rural location, so please report anything you see 
of people acting suspiciously or out of place, as this can sometimes paint a picture. 
 
Its been nice to see local business i.e.  shops pubs and restaurants have been starting to get busier 
and the communities starting to come out more. I really do enjoy being able to catch up with the 
local residents on my patch, and please if you see me come over for a chat. 
Social distancing rules still apply, for updates please see the government website. 
 
As parish meetings start to get back to normal, I will try and attend when I am able depending on 
operational needs.  
 
 
Please can I make everyone aware on how you can report crimes and what maybe happening in your 
area. 
 

 101 - non emergency line for reporting information or can ask for myself to contact you. 

 

 999 - emergency line - crimes that are happening there and then i.e hare coursing, someone 
breaking in, you feel alarmed or distressed. 

 Live Chat - www.kent.police.uk  

Page 17

http://www.kent.police.uk/


 

 
 
 
Click on the Chat Button - this is a quicker way of reporting and what is happening, and a person at 
our control room will be able to take your query talk you through and help you. 
 

We do not monitor parish / Town Facebook or Twitter sites and this is not a suitable way of 

reporting things, other wise we are not aware. 
 

 Report - this is on the same front page of the Kent police website - another easy way to 
report somethings to us. It will ask you various question and take you to the relevant 
agencies, to deal and help you with the problem. Some things that are reported to us are not 
always a police matter and could divert you to the council for example... 

 
Things that need to be reported to the council that they deal with and is not necessary a police 
matter are the following: - 
 
Nuisance Noise 
 

Nuisance noise is any loud or persistent noise that causes you ongoing concern or affects 

your quality of life. Your local council should be your first contact for reporting nuisance 

noise as this isn’t usually a matter for the police. However, if the situation feels like it may 

get heated or violent as a result of the noise we will intervene. 

Common types of nuisance noise 

Building and vehicle alarms 

Page 18

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Ffind-local-council&data=02%7C01%7Ckatherine.richards%40kent.police.uk%7Cabc16bd19e0d43a3940e08d84f1ca02c%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637346331652517125&sdata=95R0oI5HZnGnq26vv53jFUxocMiLDNbEP2btydN%2BG3g%3D&reserved=0


If the same alarm keeps going off this may qualify as nuisance noise, especially if it goes on 

for a long time and keeps people up late at night. 

Noise from pubs and clubs 

Pubs, clubs and other venues can contribute to nuisance noise by playing music too loud or 

later than their licence permits. This can be made worse by people talking loudly as they 

leave the venue or keeping the party going by turning up their vehicles’ music systems. 

Construction sites 

Construction companies and contractors must by law take all reasonable steps to control 

noise and work within certain times, usually from 7.30am to 6pm. If they want to work 

outside these times they must apply for a special permit from the local council. 

What is the impact? 

Having to tolerate either constant or intermittent nuisance noise can be exhausting, 

especially if it happens through the night. 

It can also make people feel isolated and helpless, unable to relax in their own homes. This 

can have extremely negative effects in the long term, so we take reports of ongoing 

nuisance noise very seriously. 

What you can do 

If a building or car alarm is going off and there’s clear evidence of criminal activity, such as a 

broken window or someone acting suspiciously nearby, call 999 immediately. 

If there’s no evidence of criminal activity, we would always suggest trying to talk peacefully 

to the person responsible for the noise. They may already be trying to fix it. Unbelievable as 

it may seem, they may not even be aware of the problem. 

If the person doesn’t want to stop the noise completely, try to reach an amicable 

compromise, such as no music after 11pm. 

If you feel you can’t talk to the people involved, or they won’t listen, contact the 

Environmental Health team at your local council. They’ll be able to investigate and take 

steps to end the noise. 

 

Page 19

tel:999
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Freport-noise-pollution-to-council&data=02%7C01%7Ckatherine.richards%40kent.police.uk%7Cabc16bd19e0d43a3940e08d84f1ca02c%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637346331652527082&sdata=Eg37X6G%2FZjeXQejO5mEAeiixb6R2eAuvPEzyOxFsOEM%3D&reserved=0


Fly-tipping and littering covers a range of items that people might discard in a public place, 

from large appliances like fridges to drugs-related paraphernalia like needles and syringes. 

Find out more below, including what you can do to help clean up your community. 

Common types of littering 

While the police will take action if we witness it happening, littering should usually be 

reported to your local council as they can organise the removal of litter. 

General littering 

General littering includes the dumping of household rubbish, either in plastic bags or as 

individual items. It also includes dog fouling in public places. 

Fly-tipping 

Fly-tipping is the illegal dumping of large items or waste on public roads, land or into rivers. 

This could include large household appliances like washing machines or discarded materials 

from construction sites. 

Hazardous items 

Equipment used for taking drugs, discarded drugs and items used during sex, such as 

condoms, represent a serious health risk to the general public. Your local council will want 

to remove these and make the area safe. 

What is the impact? 

Fly-tipping and littering can be a health hazard, not to mention an eyesore. It can cause 

unpleasant smells, attract pests and create a dangerous environment for children, pets and 

wildlife in particular. 

We’ve found that if the problem is not dealt with quickly, it can lead to an increase in fly-

tipping in the area, making the unpleasant and unsafe area even larger and more obvious. 

What you can do 

If you’ve witnessed littering or people leaving a mess in public, please don’t attempt to 

remove the rubbish yourself in case there are hidden sharp or dangerous items. Contact 

your local council who will arrange for the rubbish to be removed. 

If you’ve witnessed fly-tipping or people discarding drug-related items, please photograph 

the discarded items if possible, and find the right antisocial behaviour reporting 

service using our online tool. 

Page 20

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Ffind-local-council&data=02%7C01%7Ckatherine.richards%40kent.police.uk%7Cabc16bd19e0d43a3940e08d84f1ca02c%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637346331652527082&sdata=1lj0W%2B8AjdgI%2FGs3OudyrVTgqQUEvFzwFvt4BviHYO8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Ffind-local-council&data=02%7C01%7Ckatherine.richards%40kent.police.uk%7Cabc16bd19e0d43a3940e08d84f1ca02c%7Cf31b07f09cf940db964d6ff986a97e3d%7C0%7C0%7C637346331652537037&sdata=9032EGwrqO3RWfGbcvyz8B68bb5iBeIQak4yIQ%2Bvd2g%3D&reserved=0
https://www.kent.police.uk/ro/report/asb/asb-b/report-antisocial-behaviour/
https://www.kent.police.uk/ro/report/asb/asb-b/report-antisocial-behaviour/


 

Digital Surgery - During the past months we have held ‘digital surgery’ with Sergeant 

Bloomfield. These ‘surgeries’ allow residents to contact us via live chat on the Kent Police 

website. They are a useful tool and I would encourage you to join in when they are taking 

place should you have anything that. I will update you all when we are doing another one 

for your local area, as we are rotating the areas that have a digital surgery. We have put this 

in place over the pass months, where we have been unable to attend town and parish 

meeting due to the COVID restrictions, or meeting have not been taking place in the usual 

way. 

Please can I remind parishes that I will try and attend meets, as and when I can, and please 

do contact me if dates are coming up and you would like me to attend. 

 

Ashford Mediation Service - helping people talk about and 

   solve their problems and disputes 

AMS is a charity that helps people across the Ashford Borough Council area with 

neighbourhood, family and 

  intergenerational disputes; offering mediation services in the local community with the 

help of trained volunteer mediators. These services provide a way of enabling people to talk 

about problems and reach solutions, with the mediators 

 

There are quite a variety of problems that the service can help deal with, such as: 

  · Noisy neighbours 

· Children’s behaviour 

· Pets’ behaviour 

· Parking disputes 

· Boundary disputes/shared driveways 

Page 21



· Harassment/Abusive behaviour 

 Early engagement of AMS when an issue arises is key to securing early solutions and 

preventing problems deteriorating to more damaging levels. As they deteriorate, they can 

often spread beyond the individuals originally involved to their extended families and 

friends and affecting other neighbours and the wider community. More extreme cases can 

turn from civil/community issues into criminal ones, an outcome that everyone wants to 

avoid. 

Should you wish to contact AMS then please find below their details: 

 Ashford Mediation Service, Ashford Police Station, 

Tufton Street, Ashford TN23 1BT 

Tel: 01233 896237 

Mob: 07845 914838 

Email: info@ashfordmediation.co.uk Website: www.ashfordmediation.co.uk 

Neighbourhood watch 

Alternatively, Neighbourhood Watch (NHW) send out regular updates in 

  relation to crimes that have happened in the Ashford area. If you wish to receive these 

updates directly then please contact Andrew Judd who is the Volunteer and Neighbourhood 

Watch Liaison Officer. His contact details are as follows: 

Tel: 01233 896151 

Email: andrew.judd@kent.police.uk 

  Address: Ashford Police Station, 

 Tufton Street, Ashford 

TN23 1BT 

 

 

 

Page 22

mailto:info@ashfordmediation.co.uk
http://www.ashfordmediation.co.uk/
mailto:andrew.judd@kent.police.uk


Commuity SpeedWatch 

The Speedwatch groups in my areas have been busy again this month and are getting some 

amazing results. I have been out delivering warning letters to people who have been 

continuing to speed these are from the community speed watch team. 

Officers have also been out in various locations which have highlighted to us, that there are 

problems with speeding and speeders have being handed tickets for their speeding. We will 

continue to be out and about where we can and help support the local Community Speed 

Watch teams. These are all valued members of our community helping to make your areas 

safe.  It is sad sometimes to see the abuse that these volunteers sometimes get, these will 

be report. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This email and any other accompanying document(s) contain information from Kent Police and/or 
Essex Police, which is confidential or privileged. The information is intended to be for the exclusive 
use of the individual(s) or bodies to whom it is addressed. The content, including any subsequent 
replies, could be disclosable if relating to a criminal investigation or civil proceedings. If you are not 
the intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of the 
contents of this information is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify us 
immediately by contacting the sender or telephoning Kent Police on 01622 690690 or Essex Police 
on 01245 491491, as appropriate. For further information regarding Kent Police’s or Essex Police’s 
use of personal data please go to https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/privacy/ or 
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/privacy/. Additionally for our Terms and Conditions please go to 
https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/ or https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/terms-
conditions/  
 

Page 23

https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/privacy/
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/privacy/
https://www.kent.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/
https://www.essex.police.uk/hyg/terms-conditions/


Page 1 of 2 
 

Tenterden Town Council 

Representation on outside organisations 
Report to the council meeting on 14 September 2020 by Cllr Justin Nelson 
 

Civil Society Conference 
Background: This is an initiative established by three members of the public to encourage volunteer and 
community organisations in the town to communicate and liaise with each other, so the community as a 
whole can be better aware of what each organisation is doing from time to time, and to enable 
organisations to help each other and the town council. It should be noted that there is no governance 
structure at present (though a CIO is to be formed).  Organisations are invited to send representatives, and 
to invite others (especially younger members of the community) to attend the periodic conferences, in order 
to provide updates on their own activities, hear updates from other representatives, and offer constructive 
suggestions. There is website currently, but information is available via www.mytenterden.co.uk 
 
Update:  

1 The leading lights behind the Civil Society Conference have apparently met James Fuller to 
discuss his High Street proposals, but no details have been publicised 

2 There is no meeting of the Civil Society Conference currently planned 
 

Tenterden & District Chamber of Commerce 
Background: The chamber of commerce is a community interest company, TDCC Limited. Its committee 
normally meets monthly, and there are 6-weekly liaison meeting with the Town Clerk. When permitted by 
circumstances, it holds monthly networking meetings/workshop sessions, and other activities from time to 
time. Its website is at www.tenterdenchamber.org  
 
Update:  

1 The chamber’s committee’s meeting are still being held virtually,  
2 The “Love Tenterden” card has been re-launched 
3 The adjourned AGM of the chamber is due on 29 September, and will be held virtually  
4 The chamber committee will meet the Christmas Market proposers to see what is proposed for 

2020 and how the chamber may be able to help or be involved 
 

Tenterden Leisure Centre Trust 
Background: The trust is a limited company, Tenterden Leisure Centre Trust Limited (company number 
04457980) and a registered charity (number 1103179).  Its constitution provides for the town council to 
nominate two councillors to act as trustees; for the chamber of commerce, Ashford Borough Council and the 
leisure centre’s users’ group each to nominate one trustee; and for up to nine other trustees to be elected by 
the board of trustees.  The operational structure is not simple: the freehold interest in the site of the leisure 
centre is owned by the town council, who leased it to the borough council, who built the leisure centre and 
sub-leased it (but not the car parks) to the trust, who operate it via the medium of a management company, 
Serco. It has a page on the leisure centre’s website: 
https://www.tenterdenleisure.com/tenterden/ABOUT_Trust .  
 
Update:  

1 The leisure centre has re-opened, with costs being underwritten by Ashford Borough Council 
2 Activities at the centre are increasing as it is safe to do so. One limiting factor is the lack of 

ventilation in the former weights room part of the gym, which is therefore not currently usable, 
but the possibility of installing a ventilator there are being investigated 
 

  

Page 24

Agenda Item 13

http://www.tenterdenchamber.org/
https://www.tenterdenleisure.com/tenterden/ABOUT_Trust


Page 2 of 2 
 

Tenterden area cycling strategy steering group 
Background: The steering group is an ad hoc group of local residents interested in improving the cycling 
(and walking) facilities in and around Tenterden. It has no formal structure or governance and meets on an 
ad hoc basis to discuss and promote suitable suggestions for improvement. Its ambitions were given a huge 
boost by the production in July 2018 of a report by Sustrans on the existing and potential walking and 
cycling facilities in Tenterden, commissioned by the borough council as part of the county council’s “Kent 
Town Audits” programme.   
 
The report has been welcomed wholeheartedly by the steering group, subject to some suggestions for better 
improvements, in particular a “rural route” for the extension of the greenway currently running from 
Grange Road to the back of Drury Road, so that it follows the edges of the fields immediately the other side 
of the former and current railway track to reach the station then through Coombe Lane cemetery to reach 
Station Road car park, instead of the current route through Drury Road (and possibly Wells Close) to and 
along Turners Avenue, then Eastwell Barn Mews and Eastwell Meadows to the High Street. Assuming 
landowners agree to this, the main problem is a practical/financial one if a small valley, currently obscured 
by undergrowth, is steep enough to require bridging. To avoid that valley, the Sustrans representative 
wanted to look at the possibility of using the shoulder of the railway cutting for the cycle track. 
 
Update:  

1 Cycling improvement plans are still on hold pending the development by the Neighbourhood 
Plan steering committee of discussions with landowners generally – TCSSG does not want to 
interfere in that 

2 There have been no meetings or other activities since the previous report  
 

KCC parish forum for Tenterden ward 
Background: These meetings are arranged by KCC councillor Mike Hill, to update representatives of the 
parish councils in his ward and receive feedback and suggestions from them. They are held fairly 
infrequently: the last was on 22 October 2019, but the previous one was on 30 January 2019 
 
Update:  

1 None. 
 
Justin Nelson: 07 September 2020 

Page 25


	Agenda
	9 GENERAL POWER OF COMPETENCE.
	10 TENTERDEN CINEMA.
	12 KENT POLICE.
	TC12 PCSO Newsletter September 2020

	13 REPORTS FROM APPOINTED TRUSTEES AND FROM COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES ON OTHER ORGANISATIONS.

